NHamp 352.07 B868 1980

ANNUAL REPORTS

of the Town Officers

BROOKFIELD



New Hampshire

1980

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1980

Vital Statistics for 1980

University of New Hampshire Library

ANNUAL REPORTS

of the Town Officers

BROOKFIELD



New Hampshire

1980

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 1980 Vital Statistics for 1980



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Notice	4
List of Town Officers	5
Warrant	7
Budget	10
Comparative Statement of Appropriations and Expenditures	13
Balance Sheet	15
Uniform Classification	16
Schedule of Town Property	18
Town Clerk's Report	19
Treasurer's Report	19
Detailed Receipts	22
Detailed Payments	23
Tax Collector's Report	29
Report of the Building Inspector	31
Animal Control Officer's Report	32
Report of the Health Officer	32
Report of the Visiting Nurse Association	32
Report of the Police Department	33
Report of the Planning Board	34
Report of the Lakes Region Planning Commission	. 34
Report of the Board of Adjustment	35
Report of the Forest Fire Warden	. 36
Report of the Trustees of Trust Funds	37
Auditors' Report	38
Vital Statistics	39

NOTICE

As per your vote of November 4, 1980, regarding RSA 466:30-a, it shall be unlawful for any dog, licensed or unlicensed, to be running at large in the Town of Brookfield except when accompanied by the owner or custodian, and when used for hunting, herding, supervised by competition or exhibition or training for such.

LIST OF TOWN OFFICERS

Selectmen LEROY W. SCHULTZ JAMES F. WHITTEMORE

ROBERT H. CHARNOCK

Treasurer MARGARET ROYLE

Town Clerk NANCY WHITTEMORE

Tax Collector IOLA WHITE

Health Officer ANN SHERIDAN

Police Officer CHARLES RUFF, JR.

Civilian Defense Director SELECTMEN

Forest Fire Warden FRED E. NASON BRUCE R. WIGGIN

DAVID Q. TOWLE

Dog Officer HENRY M. BLANTON

Auditors KENNETH HEALD
JEAN ALBRO

JEAN ALBRO

Moderator RAYMOND WEEKS ERNEST BROWN

RODERICK ALLEN

Supervisors of the Checklist EDWARD WHITE

RITA McDONALD

IRENE CATE

Ballot Clerks ELIZABETH DUNN,

MARGARET ROYLE, IOLA WHITE, SHIRLEY GANEM, ELIZABETH McKINLAY, DONNALEE WILSON,

LILLIAN M. WEST, CATHERINE SCHULTZ

Trustee of Trust Funds CLYDE B. LONG HELEN CHURCHILL

ADELAIDE HUGHES

PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS - 1980

GEORGE C. SCRIBNER, Chairman
NORMAN WALPOLE
MIRIAM COPPLESTONE (resigned)
CHARLES BUCKLAND
SHIRLEY GANEM
ROLAND TINKHAM

MIRIAM COPPLESTONE (resigned) ROLAND TINKHAM ROBERT H. CHARNOCK SUSAN R. MURPHY

CHERYL PERRY, Non-Member Secretary

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEMBERS

H. RUSSELL ALBRO, Chairman

DONNALEE WILSON

CURRIE DeBOW

H. RUSSELL ALBRO

KENNETH HEALD

Term Expires 1981

Term Expires 1983

Term Expires 1981

Term Expires 1981

Term Expires 1984

SELECTMEN HOURS Thursday 7:30 P.M. to 9:00 P.M. Town Hall 522-3688

TOWN CLERK HOURS Friday 8:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. Home of Nancy Whittemore Any other time by appointment 522-3672

> TAX COLLECTOR Home of Iola White No set hours 522-3529

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE TOWN WARRANT

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Brookfield in the County of Carroll in said State, qualified to vote in Town Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in said Brookfield on Tuesday, the tenth day of March, next, at one of the clock in the afternoon to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year.
- ${f 2.}$ To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of 1981 taxes.
- $\bf 3.$ To see if the Town will vote to accept Town Road Aid on Class V Highways and appropriate the sum of \$353.34 as the Town's share.
- **4.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$3,944.87 for the Sanbornville Fire Precinct and \$1,000.00 for forest fires.
- **5.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$4,930.00 for the use of the Sanbornville Dump.
- **6.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$700.00 for the Gafney Library.
- **7.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$500.00 for Huggins Hospital.
- **8.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$550.00 for the Public Health Visiting Nirse Service.
- **9.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$205.42 for the Carroll County Mental Health Service.
- $10.\ \,$ To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$500.00 to update the Tax Map for the year 1981.
- 11. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$52.50 for the Lakes Region Association.
- **12.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$4,000.00 to the Capital Reserve Fund for Town Road Equipment.
- **13.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,000.00 to the Capital Reserve Fund for future replacement of a Police Cruiser.
- **14.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$200.00 to help finance the Wolfeboro Area Meals on Wheels, Inc.
- **15.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,000.00 for the installation of dry fire hydrants.
- **16.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$6,600.00 for the purpose of oiling roads.

- 17. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$13,750.00 to repair the Mountain Road Bridge, \$2,750.00 to be raised by taxes and \$11,000.00 to be used from the Revenue Sharing Fund.
- **18.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$5,000.00 and transfer \$11,000.00 from the Revenue Sharing Fund as the Town's share in replacing the Mountain Road Bridge, the work to be done by the State at a total cost of \$80,000.00 *This Article to be considered if Article 17 is defeated.*
- **19.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$800.00 to pay for the completed EDA audit.
- **20.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$3,500.00 for the increased costs of Property Reappraisal.
- **21.** To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$200.00 for two (2) additional voting booths.
- **22** To see if the Town will vote to petition the Representatives and Senators who represent the Town in the General Court to support in the current session of the General Court, the concurrent resolution to amend the State Constitution to limit the annual increase in property taxes to five percent and to limit the annual increase in spending by the state or any city, town, or other governmental unit of the state to five percent. By Petition.
- **23.** To see if the Town will vote to raise such additional sums of money as may be necessary to defray Town charges for the ensuing year and make appropriations for same, as set forth hereafter.

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION

General Government
Town Officers' Salaries
Town Officers' Expenses
Election & Registration
Town Hall & Öther Buildings
Employees' Social Security
Contingency Fund
Protection of Persons & Property
Police Department
Insurance
Planning & Zoning
Damages & Legal
Health Department, Vital Statristics
Highways & Bridges
Town Maintenance, Summer & Winter
Street Lighting
General Expenses of the Highway
Public Welfare (Town Poor)
Patriotic Purposes (Memorial Day, etc.)
Public Service Enterprises
Advertising & Regional Association

Debt Services Interest on Temporary Loans
TOTAL
Given under our hands and seal, this twenty-second day of February, in the year of our Lord nineteen hundred and eighty-one. JAMES F. WHITTEMORE ROBERT H. CHARNOCK LEROY W. SCHULTZ Selectmen of Brookfield A true copy of Warrant—Attest:
JAMES F. WHITTEMORE ROBERT H. CHARNOCK LEROY W. SCHULTZ Selectmen of Brookfield

	NEW DAMPOUNT
2	7
	VIICLD,
	-
ζ	ン
C	Ď
č	
1	DI
	4
7	5
5	-
E	=
THE PARTY	5
Ē	7
1	_
Ē	Ц
	C
F	_
TILL	1
7	7
6	J
FIG CITE	110 1
6	7
1	200
C	٥

BUDGET OF THE TOWN OF BROOKFIELD, NEW HAMPSHIKE Appropriations and Extimates of Revenue for the Ensuing Year January 1, 1981 to December 31, 1981	of BROOKFIELD, NEW the Ensuing Year January	/ HAMPSHIP 1, 1981 to Dec	KE cember 31, 1981
PURPOSES OF APPROPRIATIONS (RSA 31:4)	Appropriations Actual Expenditures Appropriations Previous Fiscal Year Previous Fiscal Year	tual Expenditures evious Fiscal Year	Appropriations Ensuing Fiscal Year
General Government			
Town Officers' Salaries	6,000.00	5,541.78	
Town Officers' Expenses	3,600.00	3,014.00	က်
Election and Registration Expenses	1,500.00	1,361.94	00.009
Expenses Town Hall and Other Buildings	3,000.00	1,714.15	4,000.00
Protection of Persons and Property			
Police Department	5,350.00	2,786.85	_
Fire Department, including Forest Fires	5,556.00	5,371.89	Ŋ
Planning and Zoning	800.00	1,177.20	
Insurance	3,000.00	2,843.80	5,141.00
Health Department			
Health Department—Hospital—Ambulance	1,191.99	1,191.99	1,455.42
Vital Statistics	10.00	10.00	10.00
Town Dump and Garbage Removal	2,080.00	2,030.00	4,930.00
Highways and Bridges			
Town Road Aid	357.05	357.05	353.34
Town Maintenance	15,000.00	18,115.19	17,500.00
Street Lighting	150.00	126.38	150.00
General Expenses of Highway Department	12,000.00	12,042.92	12,000.00
Oiling Roads	6,000.00	5,838.00	6,600.00
Bridge Repair (Mountain Road)	00:	00.	13,750.00
Bridge Replacement (Mountain Road)	00.	00.	16,000.00
Libraries			
Library	200.00	700.00	200.00
Public Welfare			6 6 6
Town Poor	1,500.00	94.09	1,000.00
Patriotic Purposes	C	8	00 26
Memorial Day—Old nome Day	00.00	00.	00.66

3,279.85 3,000.00 786.70 725.00 436.85 500.00 .00 1,088.00 .00 52.50 .00 800.00	355.35 2,500.00	500.00 1,150.00 500.00	4,000.00 500.00 1,000.00	75,325.98 128,685.13	57,365.39 71,319.74	Actual Revenue Estimated Revenue revious Fiscal Year Ensuing Fiscal Year	2,194.00 2,200.00 24,254.00 8,000.00 1,775.00 1,500.00 42.00 25.00	2,511.00 2,500.00 9,662.00 9,000.00 1,504.00 1,000.00
3,000.00 655.00 500.00 800.00 .00	2,300.00	500.00	4,000.00	81,385.04	nty Taxes)	Estimated Revenue Actual Revenue Previous Fiscal Year	2,000.00 7,000.00 1,000.00 20.00	1,800.00 9,000.00 500.00
Unclassified Damages and Legal Expenses Advertising and Regional Associations Employees' Retirement and Social Security Contingency Fund Lakes Region Association EDA Audit	Debt Service Interest on Temporary Loans	Capital Outlay Tax Map Update Wing Plow	Payment to Capital Keserve Fund Highway Equipment Future Replacement Police Cruiser	Total Appropriations	Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues, Exclusive of Taxes Amount of Taxes to be Raised (Exclusive of School and County Taxes)	SOURCES OF REVENUE	From Local Taxes Resident Taxes Yield Taxes Interest on Delinquent Taxes Resident Tax Penalties	From State Meals and Rooms Tax Interest and Dividends Tax Savings Bank Tax

Highway Subsidy	3,916.93	3,916.00	3,922.93
Reimbursement a/c Business Profits Tax	4,000.00	5,952.00	4,500.00
Additional Highway Subsidy	1,250.00	2,970.00	2,963.46
From Local Sources, Except Taxes			
Motor Vehicle Permits Fees	8,000.00	10,113.00	9,000.00
Dog Licenses	300.00	435.00	300.00
Business Licenses, Permits, and Filing Fees	100.00	15.00	25.00
Interest Received on Deposits	300.00	1,578.00	300.00
Income from Departments	150.00	391.00	150.00
Revenue Sharing from Savings Account	6,000.00	00.000.9	5.979.00
Receipts Other Than Current Revenue			
Revenue Sharing Fund	5,908.00	5,979.00	6,000.00
Total Revenues and Credits	51,244.93	79,291.00	57,365.39

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1980

For Fiscal	For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1980	er 31, 1980		
TITLE OF APPROPRIATION	Appropriated	Expended	Over	Under
General Government				
Town Officers' Salaries	6,000.00	5.541.78		458 22
Town Officers' Expenses	3,600.00	3,014.00		586.00
Election and Registration	1,500.00	1,361.94		138.06
Expenses Town Hall and Other Buildings	3,000.00	1,714.15		1.285.85
Protection of Persons and Property				
Police Department	5,350.00	2,786.85		2,563.15
Fire Department including Forest Fires	5,056.00	4,519.39		536.61
Planning and Zoning	800.00	1,177.20	377.20	
Insurance	3,000.00	2,843.80		156.20
Health Department				
Hospital—Hospital—Ambulance	1,191.99	1,191.99		
Vital Statistics	10.00	10.00		
Town Dump	2,080.00	2,030.00		50.00
Highways and Bridges				
Town Road Aid	357.05	357.05		
Town Maintenance	15,000.00	18,115.19	3.115.19	
Street Lighting	150.00	126.38		23.62
General Expenses of Highway Department				
(including Lyford Road 5,450.00)	12,000.00	12,042.92	42.92	
Oiling Town Roads (from Revenue Sharing)	6,000.00	5,838.00		162.00
Library	700.00	200.00		
Public Welfare - Town Poor	1,500.00	94.09		1,405.91
Patriotic Purposes	35.00			35.00
Unclassified				
Legal Expenses Advertising and Regional Associations	3,000.00	3,279.75	279.85 131.70	i.
Employees Social Security	00.000	436.85		63.15

800.00	1,944.65	35.9 5.0	150.00		4,299.36 10,358.42 6,059.06
	355.35	500.00		4,000.00	
800.00	2,300.00	500.00	1,300.00	4,000.00	81,385.04 75,325.98 6,059.06
Contingency Fund	Debt Service Interest on Temporary Loan	Capital Outlay Tax Map Update Den Hindeant	Replace Wing Plow	Capital Keserve Fund Highway Equipment Police Cruiser	Total Appropriations

BALANCE SHEET

	ASSETS		
Cash in Hands of Treasurer		62,779.23	
Savings Accounts	1,033.90		
Tax Anticipatory Revenue Sharing	6,040.36		
Savings Account (Reserves)	0,010.00		
Cemetery	336.00		
Fire Truck	12,688.00		
Reappraisal	10,000.00		
Dry Hydrants	447.50		
Interest	1,338.16	04 000 00	
TOTAL		31,883.92	04 ((0 15
TOTAL Capital Reserve Fund			94,663.15 13,184.40
Unreedemed Taxes			13,104.40
Levy of 1979		13,487.06	
Levy of 1978		12,472.73	
,		,	25,959.79
Uncollected Taxes			
Levy of 1980, including Resid	ent Taxes		40,962.35
Total Assets			174,769.69
I	LIABILITIES		
Accounts Owed by the Town			
Unexpended Revenue Sharin	g Fund	6,040.36	
School Tax Payable	A	78,264.66	
Other Liabilities (Res. Savings Capital Reserve Funds	Accounts)	24,809.66 13,184.40	
Total Liabilities		15,164.40	122,299.08
Current Surplus			52,470.61
Grand Total			174,769.69

63,658.50 52,470.61 11,187.89

Current Surplus—December 31, 1979 Current Surplus—December 31, 1980 Decrease of Surplus

UNIFORM CLASSIFICATION – RECEIPTS & PAYMENTS RECEIPTS

RECEIPTS		
From Local Taxes	142 062 54	
Property Taxes—Current Year	143,062.54	
Resident Taxes—Current Year	2,194.00	
Yield Taxes—Current Year	24,390.50	160 646 74
Total Current Year's Taxes Collected	37,782.42	169,646.74
Property & Yield Taxes Previous Years		
Resident Taxes—Previous Years	100.00	
Interest on Delinquent Taxes	1,775.72	
Penalties—Resident Taxes	42.00	
Tax Sales Redeemed	16,841.79	
Yield Taxes Total Previous Year's Taxes Collected		E 6 E 4 1 0 2
Total Taxes Collected and Remitted		56,541.93 226,188.67
		220,100.07
From State	2 511 40	
Meals and Rooms Tax	2,511.49 9,662.15	
Interest and Dividends Tax		
Bank Tax	1,504.06	
Highway Subsidy	3,916.93	
Additional Highway Subsidy	2,970.80 5,952.40	
Business Profits Tax	3,932.40	96 517 99
Total Receipts from State		26,517.83
From Local Sources Except Taxes Motor Vehicle Permit Fees	10,113.50	
Dog Licenses	435.20	
	15.00	
Filing Fees	13.00	
Income from Deparments Building Permits	141.78	
Fines—Police	97.00	
Septic System Permits	50.00	
Planning Board	102.28	
Total Income from Local Sources	102.20	10,954.76
Receipts from Other Than Current Revenue		10,501.70
Proceeds from Tax Anticipation Note	50,000.00	
Dry Hydrant Savings Account	352.50	
Current Use Applications	18.00	
Forest Fire Refunds	141.79	
Cemetery Fund Savings Account	264.00	
Stop Payment Refund	3.00	
Property Tax Overpayment	36.83	
Gasoline Tax Refund	45.26	
Compensation Insurance Refund	50.00	
Sale of Zoning Ordinances & Check List	14.00	
Telephone Wire Relocation Refund	264.00	
CETA—Hospital Refund	22.00	
Welfare Payments Refund	1,009.47	
Total Receipts Other Than Current Rev		52,250.85
Grants from Federal Government		
Revenue Sharing	5,979.00	

Revenue Sharing Savings Account Total Grants from Federal Government	6,000.00	11,979.00
Total Grants from Federal Government Total Receipts from Other Than Current Rev Total Receipts from All Sources Cash on Hand January 1, 1980		11,979.00 52,250.85 263,661.26 57,174.30
GRAND TOTAL		385,065.41
PAYMENTS		
General Government	5 5 4 1 5 0	
Town Officers' Salaries	5,541.78	
Town Officers' Expenses	3,014.00	
Election & Registration	1,361.94 1,714.15	
Town Hall & Other Buildings Total General Government Expense	1,714.15	11 621 97
Protection of Persons & Property		11,631.87
Police Department	2,786.85	
Fire Department	4,519.39	
Planning	1,177.20	
Insurance	2,843.80	
Total Protection of Persons & Property	2,040.00	11,327.24
Health		11,027.21
Health Dept., Hospital, Meals on Wheels,		
and Mental Health	1,191.99	
Vital Statistics	10.00	
Town Dump	2,030.00	•
Total Health Expenses	_,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	3,231.99
Highways and Bridges		-,
Town Road Aid	357,05	
Town Maintenance	18,115.19	
Street Lighting	126.38	
General Expenses (inc. 5050 Lyford Rd.)	12,042.92	
Oiling Roads (Revenue Sharing)	5,838.00	
Total Highways & Bridges Expenses		36,479.54
Library		700.00
Public Welfare		
Town Poor	94.09	
Total Public Welfare Expenses		94.09
Unclassified		
Damages & Legal Expense	3,279.85	
Advertising & Regional Associations	786.70	
Taxes Bought by Town	20,046.25	
Discounts, Abatements & Refunds	2,713.69	
Cemeteries	264.00	
Employees' Social Security	436.85	
Transfer to Revenue Sharing Sav. Acct.	5,979.00	
Stop Payment	3.00	22 500 24
Total Unclassified Expenses		33,509.34
Debt Service Payment on Tay Antisination Note	50,000,00	
Payment on Tax Anticipation Note	50,000.00	

Interest on Temporary Loan Total Debt Service Payments Capital Outlay	355.35	50,355.35
Payments to Capital Reserve, Police Car, and Highway Equipment Tax Map Update Dry Hydrant Wing Plow Total Outlay Payments Payments to Governmental Divisions To State's Share Dog License Fees To State—Bond & Debt To County OASI Payments to School District	4,500.00 500.00 852.50 1,150.00 33.00 1,150.78 18,262.00 1.33 148,507.15	7,002.50
Total Payments to Other Governme		167,954.26
Total Payments for All Purposes Cash on Hand December 31, 1980		322,286.18 62,779.23
GRAND TOTAL		385,065.41

SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY

Town Hall, Lands and Buildings	145,000.00
Furniture and Equipment	5,000.00
Police Department, Lands and Buildings	2,500.00
Highway Department, Lands and Buildings	50,000.00
Equipment	30,000.00
Materials and Supplies	1,500.00
TOTAL.	234,000.00

TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

January 1, 1980 - December 31, 1980

Automobile Permits 1980 Permits Remitted to Treasurer Dog Licenses	10,114.50	10,114.50
84 Licenses 361.20	407.00	
Fines 74.00	435.20	425.90
Remitted to Treasurer	14.00	435.20
Filing Fees Remitted to Treasurer	14.00	14.00
TOTAL	10,563.70	10,563.70
Salary Explanation		
Salary	500.00	
Auto Permits (451)	451.00	
Dog Licenses (84)	42.00	
Recording Vital Statistics	10.00	
Expenses	52.64	
Total Received in Full		1.055.64

Respectfully submitted, NANCY WHITTEMORE Town Clerk

TREASURER'S REPORT January 1, 1980 to December 31, 1980

RECEIPTS

Town Clerk		
1980 Motor Vehicle Permits	10,114.50	
Dog Licenses	361.20	
Penalties	74.00	
Filing Fees	14.00	
Total		10,563.70
Town Tax Collector		
Levy of 1979		
Property Tax	37,734.35	
Interest	1,519.08	
Costs	177.10	
Resident Tax	130.00	
Penalties	12.00	
Over Payment	36.83	
Total	39,610.16	

Levy of 1980 Property Tax Interest Resident Tax Penalties Yield Total Redemption of Tax Sales Levy of 1977 Levy of 1978 Levy of 1979 Yield Tax of 1977 Total	143,048.54 32.16 2,190.00 4.00 12,272.20 157,546.90 8,836.09 1,194.48 6,645.22 260.55 16,936.44	
Total Tax from the State Business Profits Highway Subsidy Additional Highway Subsidy Meals and Rooms Interest and Dividends Bank Total United States Treasury Revenue Sharing	5,952.40 3,916.93 2,970.80 2,511.49 9,662.15 1,504.06	214,093.50 26,517.83
Miscellaneous Permits Building Pistol Septic Systems Planning Board Security on Timber Cutting Sale of: Zoning Ordinances & Check List Police Reports Reimbursements Loan on Fuel Bill (Town Poor) Fire Expenses Change of Telephone Wire Stop Payment Check Transfers from Revenue Sharing Account Dry Hydrant Reserve Cemetery Reserve Tax Anticipation Loan from Wolfe.Nat.Bk. State Welfare Refund	141.78 28.00 50.00 102.28 12.132.00 14.00 69.00 30.00 141.79 264.00 3.00 6,000.00 352.50 264.00 50,000.00 1,009.47	5,979.00

CETA Reimbursement for Hospital Bill Refund on Overpayment from Compensation Insurance Current Use Applications Refund on Gasoline Tax Total GRAND TOTAL	22.00 50.00 18.00 45.26	70,737.08 327,891.11
OMMIND TO THE		027,071.11
Reecipts—January 1, 1980 to December 3 Cash Book Balance January 1, 1980 Total Receipts Paid by Selectmen's Orders Cash Book Balance December 31, 19080 Savings Accounts in Wolfeboro National Ba		327,891.11 57,174.30 385,065.41 322,286.18 62,779.23
Revenue Sharing Fund Balance January 1, 1980	5.707.10	
Deposits	5,979.00	
Interest	354.26	
Withdrawals	6,000.00	
Balance December 31, 1980	6,040.36	6,040.36
Town Reserves Account	0,010.00	-,
Balance January 1, 1980	23,663,98	
Deposits	500.00	
Interest	1,262.18	
Withdrawals	616.50	
Balance December 31, 1980	24,809.66	24,809.66
Reserves are		
Fire Truck: 12,688.00		
Cemetery: 336.00		
Dry Hydrant: 447.50		
Reappr. Town: 10,000.00		
Tax Anticipation Account	001.01	
Balance January 1, 1980	981.01	
Interest	52.89	1 000 00
Balance December 31, 1980	1,033.90	1,033.90

This is to certify that this is a true summary of accounts taken from the books of the Treasurer January 1, 1980 to December 31, 1980 to the best of my knowledge.

MARGARET ROYLE Treasurer

DETAILED RECEIPTS

From Local Taxes (Collected & Remitted to	o Treasurer)	
Property Taxes—1980 Levy	143,062.54	
Resident Taxes—1980 Levy	2,190.00	
Penalties	4.00	
Yield Taxes	24,390.20	
Total Current Year's Taxes Collected		169,646.74
Previous Year's Taxes		
Property	37,782.42	
Interest	1,775.72	
Resident	100.00	
Resident Tax Penalties	42.00	
Tax Sales Redeemed	16,841.79	
Total Previous Year's Taxes		56,541.93
From State (for Highways & Bridges)		
Highway Subsidy	3,916.93	
Additional Highway Subsidy	2,970.80	
Business Profits Tax	5,952.40	
Interest & Dividends Tax	9,662.15	
Bank Tax	1,504.06	
Rooms & Meals Tax	2,511.49	
Total from State		26,517.83
From Local Sources		,
Dog Licenses	435.20	
Filing Fees	15.00	
Building Permits	141.78	
Planning Board	102.28	
Septic Systems	50.00	
Police Department	97.00	
Motor Vehicle Permits	10,113.50	
Total from Local Sources	,	10,954.76
From All Other Current Revenue		.,
Proceeds from Tax Anticipation Note	50,000.00	
Dry Hydrant Savings Account	352.00	
Current Use Applications	18.00	
Refund—Forest Fires	141.79	
Cemetery Savings Account	264.00	
Stop Payment Refund	3.00	
Property Tax Overpayment	36.83	
Gasoline Tax Refund	45.26	
Compensation Insurance Refund	50.00	
Sale of Zoning Ordinances & Check List	14.00	
Payment for Moving Telephone Wire	264.00	
CETA—Insurance	22.00	
Refund on Welfare Case	1,009.47	
Payment—Town Poor	30.00	
Total from All Other Current Revenue	00.50	52,250.85
Grants from U. S. Government		,
Revenue Sharing	5,979.00	
-		

11,979.00 327,891.11

DETAILED PAYMENTS

Town Officers' Salaries	21110	
James F. Whittemore—Selectman	500.00	
James F. Whittemore—Building Inspector	131.78	
Robert H. Charnock—Selectman	500.00	
Norman H. Royle—Selectman	125.00	
LeRoy W. Schultz—Selectman	375.00	
Nancy Whittemore—Town Clerk	500.00	
Nancy Whittemore—Town Clerk Fees	503.00	
Margaret Royle—Treasurer (50 from exp.)	350.00	
Iola White—Tax Collector	2,047.00	
Helen Churchill—Trustee of Trust Funds	50.00	
Adelaide Hughes—Trustee of Trust Funds	50.00	
C. Boyer Long—Trustee of Ttrust Funds	50.00	
Jean M. Albro—Auditor	100.00	
Kenneth F. Heald	100.00	
Anne F. Sheridan—Health Officer	50.00	
Elizabeth McKinlay—Secretary	100.00	
Total		5,541.78
Town Officers' Expenses		
Postage	94.44	
Equity Publishing Co. (RSA)	42.00	
Granite State News (Ads)	129.80	
New England Telephone Co.	319.80	
Norman Royle (Copies)	32.83	
Registry of Deeds	28.75	
Miriam Copplestone (Updating Honor Roll)	10.00	
James F. Whittemore	275.00	
Norman H. Royle	50.00	
Robert H. Charnock	275.00	
LeRoy W. Schultz	225.00	
Margaret Royle—Bookkeeper	150.00	
Elizabeth McKinlay	50.00	
Kingswood Press (Town Report)	608.00	
Rochester Currier Co.	5.49	
Elizabeth McKinlay (Copies)	5.90	
Robert Charnock (Copies)	15.45	
Joan Heald	50.00	
Joan Heald (Reg. Mail)	1.40	
Brown & Saltmarsh (Supplies)	84.51	0.450.07
Total		2,453.37
Treasurer Brown & Saltmarsh (Cash Book)	60.00	
Postage	45.00	
Total	45.00	105.00
1 Otal		103.00

Tarrin Clark		
Town Clerk	20.50	
Wheeler & Clark (Dog Tags)	30.58	
N. H. Binding, Inc.	90.00	
Braham Publishing Co.	19.35	
Postage	27.72	
Supplies	2.87	
Mileage Total	12.00	100 57
Tax Collector		182.57
Postage	62.65	
Brown & Saltmarsh	63.65	
Homestead Press	30.86	
Registry of Deeds	31.05	
Advertising	24.50	
Total	123.00	072.06
Total		273.06
Election and Registration		3,014.00
Supervisors of Check List		
Rita McDonald	186.00	
Mileage	18.00	
Edward White	172.05	
Irene Cate	182.90	
Iola White	12.40	
Ballot Clerks	12.40	
Donnalee Wilson	10.08	
Ralph Shortridge	62.00	
Lillian West	83.70	
Margaret Royle	72.85	
Iola White	55.80	
Shirley Ganem	9.30	
Elizabeth McKinlay	18.60	
Normal Royle	13.95	
Charles Ruff, Jr.	2.33	
Elizabeth Dunn	24.80	
Moderators	24.00	
Roderick Allen	56.58	
Ernest Brown	20.15	
Raymond Weeks	27.90	
Granite State News	79.20	
Kingswood Press	224.00	
Thomas Printing	29.35	
Total	27.00	1,361.94
Town Hall & Other Buildings		1,001.71
Public Service Co. of N.H.	330.38	
Dube & Murphy, Inc.—Fuel Oil	1,329.34	
Dube & Murphy, Inc. —Furnace Repair	18.00	
Sanbornville Hardware—Prestone	10.98	
Bradley Hardware—Door Lock	4.25	
Mike's Lock & Key	18.00	
James Whittemore (Keys)	3.20	
Total		1,714.15

Police Department		
Charles Ruff, Jr.	875.00	
Larry L. Kilmer	375.00	
Charles Ruff, Jr. (Car Expense)	7.27	
Charles Ruff, Jr. (Radar)	250.00	
Police Association Dues	10.00	
Village Press	8.57	
Dube & Murphy, Inc.	116.13	
N. H. Dept. of Safety (Car Inspection)	86.52	
Sanbornville Sunoco (Car Repair)	4.85	
Bill's Texaco	613.51	
Lakeside Service	11.75	
Kendall Auto Co.	5.00	
Gerard Automotive	248.25	
Ossipee Electronic (Bullet Proof Vest)	155.00	
State Radio Inspection	20.00	
Total	20.00	2,786.85
Palnning Board		2,700.03
Postage	45.00	
Registry of Deeds for Subdivisions		
Kinville	3.15	
L.J.C.	3.00	
Scribner	3.15	
Perry	3.15	
Mt. Lake Corp.	3.00	
terWeele	3.15	
Master Plan		
Wilmar Grant (Copies)	65.00	
Lakes Region Planning	442.00	
Granite State News	311.89	
Miscellaneous Expense		
Boston Blue	35.27	
Norman H. Royle (Copies)	6.65	
Norman Walpole (Postage & Travel)	7.48	
George Scribner	54.05	
Robert Charnock	15.00	
Cheryl Perry	26.56	
Granite State News	29.70	
Berry H. Keith (Consultant for Bd. of Adj.	120.00	
Total		1,177.20
Fire Department including Forest Fires		
Sanbornville Fire District	4,056.00	
Installing Dry Hydrant Kit		
(352.50 under Capital Improvement)		
New England Machinery Corp. (Pumps)	188.00	
Wolfeboro Hardware (Cement)	13.16	
Educational Meeting		
Bruce Wiggin	30.68	
David Towle	20.08	
Gaven Fire	47.87	

Pulkinen Fire Off Route 109 (Seiberlich) Total	68.74 95.26	4,519.39
Insurance N. H. Municipal (Compensatrion) Kendall Insurance (Public Bond) Floater (Miscellaneous Equipment) Bond and 2 Floaters Multi Peril Policy	237.00 186.00 69.00 69.00 1,030.30	
Auto Comprehensive Total Health Department	1,252.50	2,843.80
Visiting Nurse Association Mental Health Huggins Hospital Meals on Wheels Total	200.00 191.99 500.00 300.00	1,191.99
Vital Statistics Nancy Whittemore	10.00	1,171.77
Total Dump – Town of Wakefield Highways & Bridges	10.00	10.00 2,030.00
Town Road Aid Town Road Maintenance	357.05 18,115.19	
Summer: 8,364.60—Winter: 9,750.59 Street Lighting	126.38	
General Expense of the Highway Kinville Corp.—Lyford Road Dube & Murphy (Gasoline) Dube & Murphy (Pimp Repair) Edwin V. Moody & Son (Piling Sand, etc.) R. C. Hazelton (Plow Blades) (Wing Plow 1,150 under Capital Outlay)	5,450.00 1,853.70 123.25 1,922.82 352.86	
Meredith Lumberton, Inc. (Culvert) Brown's Power Equip. (Chain Saw Repair)	193.75 39.94	
Gravel Pollini Brothers Bruce Wiggin Ossipee Aggregate E. V. Moody	33.00 18.40 479.00 42.00	
Truck Repairs Sanbornville Sunoco N. H. Explosive—Machine DiPrizio Garage Rines Garage R. C. Hazelton Craftsman III (Road Signs)	18.00 2.70 24.97 467.59 718.54 55.00	
Oiling Roads Tilcon & Waren (Cold Patch) Tilcon & Warren (Oil) Total	860.40 5,225.00	36,479.54

Summarv Town Maintenance 18.115.19 7.047.92 General Expense Lyford Road 5.450.00 5.838.00 Oiling Library 700.00 Public Welfare - Town Poor Ossipee Oil Case No. 1 94.09 Public Service Enterprises E.V. Moody & Son (Cemetery) 264.00 Legal James F. Whittemore (Small Claims Applic.) 5.00 2.00 Robert Palmer (Warrant) Cooper, Hall & Walker (legal Advice) 1.663.75 John W. Barto (Legal Advice) 1.486.96 Henry Blanton—Animal Control Officer 122 14 3,279.85 Total Unclassified Association Dues Tax Collector 27.00 N. H. Municipal Association 300.00 Assessing Officials 20.00 Lakes Region Planning 335.00 19.00 Town Clerk Assessing Officials (1981) 20.00 Wolfeboro Nat. Bank (Stop Payment Cq.) 3.00 Granite State News Board of Adjustments 33.15 Bids for Road Agent 12.75 Supervisors of Check List 19.80 Total 789.70 Taxes Bought by Town Paid to Tax Collector 20.046.25 Discounts, Abatements & Refunds Refund—Richard Denver for overpayment of tax 36.83 Refund—D. C. Gillum for overpayment 138.70 of Yield Tax Refund—Tim Burr for overpayment of Yield 652.85 Refund—Tim Burr for overpayment of Yield 227.80

1.010.40

447.11

200.00

873.69

436.84

2.713.69

436.84

Refund—Tim Burr for overpayment of Yield

Refund—Douglas Richards for overpayment

Abnatement—Samuel Rouleau

Total

Withheld

Total

Social Security
Paid by Town

Debt Service		
Principal Debt—Wolfe. Nat. Bank	50,000.00	
Interest on Tax Anticipation Note	355.35	
Total		50,355.35
Capital Outlay		
Update Tax Map	500.00	
Dry Hydrant Savings Account	500.00	
Soil Conservation Ser. (Dry Hydrant Kit)	352.50	
Capital Reserve Highway Equipment	4,000.00	
Police Cruiser	500.00	
Wing Plow (Under Gen.Exp. of Highway)	1,150.00	
Total		7,002.50
Payment to Other Governmental Division	ns	
State of N.H. Bond & Debt	1,150.78	
State of N.H. Share of Dog License Fees	33.00	
State of N.H. OASI	1.33	
Carroll County Commission	18,262.00	
Total		19,447.11
Payment to Governor Wentworth Region		ict
1979-1980	54,507.15	
1980-1981	94,000.00	
Total		148,507.15
Deposited in Revenue Sharing Savings A	Account	5,979.00
GRAND TOTAL		322,286.18

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

(For Current Year's Levy) **SUMMARY OF WARRANTS** PROPERTY, RESIDENT, AND YIELD TAXES **LEVY OF 1980**

-DR.-

Taxes Committed to Collector		
Property Taxes	183,405.04	
Resident Taxes	2,370.00	
Total Warrants	185	5,775.04
Yield Taxes		2,272.00
Added Taxes	12	2,272.00
Resident Taxes	220.00	
Resident Taxes	220.00	220.00
Owen and During Voor		220.00
Overpayments During Year	449 11	
a/c Property Taxes	448.11	440 11
	D . T	448.11
Interest Collected on Delinquent l		32.16
Penalties Collected on Resident T	axes	4.00
TOTAL DEBITS		198,751.51
-CI	R. –	
Remittances to Treasurer		
Property Taxes	143.048.54	
Resident Taxes	2,190.00	
Yield Taxes	12,272.20	
Interest Collected	32.16	
Penalties on Resident Taxes	4.00	
renames on resident ranes		7 5 4 6 00
A1	157	7,546.90
Abatements Made During Year	000.00	
Property Taxes	232.26	
Resident Taxes	10.00	
		242.26
Uncollected Taxes - December 31	, 1980 (As Per Co	llector's List)
Property Taxes	40,572.35	,
Resident Taxes	390.00	
		062.25
Takal Caralita	4(),962.35
Total Credits		198,751.51

SUMMARY OF WARRANTS PROPERTY, RESIDENT, AND YIELD TAXES **LEVY OF 1979**

- DR. -Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1980

Property Taxes Resident Taxes 38,004.67 260.00

38,264.67

Added Taxes Resident Taxes	10.00
Overpayments a/c Property Taxes	36.83 36.83
Interest Collected on Delinquent Pro Costs Penalties Collected on Resident Tax	operty Taxes 1,519.08 177.90
TOTAL DEBITS	40,020.40
-CR.	
Remittances to Treasurer During Fis	scal Year
Ended December 31, 1980 Property Taxes Resident Taxes	37,771.18 130.00
Interest Collected During Year Penalties on Resident Taxes	1,696.98 12.00
renames on Resident Taxes	39,610.16
Abatements Made During Year Property Taxes	270.32
Resident Taxes	40.00
Uncollected Taxes – December 31, 1 Resident Taxes	310.32 1 980 (As Per Collector's List) 100.00
TOTAL CREDITS	100.00 40,020.40
SUMMARY OF V PROPERTY, RESIDENT, LEVY OF 1977 AND	, AND YIELD TAXES
- DR. Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1	

-DR. Uncollected Taxes - As of January 1, 1980
Yield 227.02
Interest Collected on Delinquent Yield Taxes
TOTAL DEBITS 265.07

-CR. Remittances to Treasurer During Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 1980
Yield Taxes 222.60
Interest Collected During Year 38.05

Uncollected Taxes – December 31, 1980 (As Per Collector's List)
Yield
4.42

TOTAL CREDITS 265.07

SUMMARY OF TAX SALES ACCOUNTS Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1980

	-DR		
	1979	1978	1977
Balance of Unredeemed Taxes January 1, 1980 Taxes Sold to Town During		13,588.84	8,156.83
Current Fiscal Year	20,046.25		
Interest Collected After Sale	86.03	77.89	679.26
TOTAL DEBITS	20,132.28	13,666.73	8,836.09
	-CR		
Remittances to Treasurer During Year			
Redemptions	6,559.19	1,116.59	8,156.83
Interest & Costs After Sale Unredeemed Taxes—	86.03	77.89	679.26
December 31, 1980	13,487.06	12,472.73	
total credits	20,132.28	13,666.73	8,836.09

REPORT OF THE BUILDING INSPECTOR January 1, 1980 – December 31, 1980

Charles Barber Samuel Rouleau James Whittemore Charles Heard Dan and Irene Wheeler Peter and Suzanne Lamb Robert Hallsworth Kenneth Mercer Ron and Deborah Baltas William Fredericks Ernest Nichols William Doran Wayne Mocksfield	New House Porch Barn Room Addition Remove Barn Alter Barn Chicken Coop New House New House Barn Room Addition Sun Deck Shed	\$ 35,000 1,500 8,600 4,500 12,000 150 40,000 38,000 12,000 1,000 1,800 5,000
		-,

15 Permits issued at an estimated cost of \$161,550.00

Respectfully submitted, JAMES WHITTEMORE Building Inspector

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER'S REPORT - 1980

Dogs—Disposed of	1
Dogs—Returned to Owners	5
Dogs—Found Home for	1
Dogs—Being a Nuisance	2
Cats—Disposed of	2
Other Complaints—Ponys, Horses	6
Notified taxpayers who had not paid dog licenses	

I can be reached after 6:00 P.M. and weekends. Telephone 473-2826

Respectfully submitted, HENRY M. BLANTON Animal Control Officer for the Town of Brookfield

REPORT OF THE HEALTH OFFICER - 1980

Septic System Permits Issued	5
Four systems were completed and five are incomplete	
Subdivision Sites Inspected	8

Respectfully submitted, ANNE M. SHERIDAN Health Officer

VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION of Wolfeboro and Vicinity

Requests for our services increased during 1980. A total of 163 home visits were made to 11 Brookfield residents. 121 of these visits were made by staff nurses; while 42 visits were made by the physiotherapist. Several Brookfield children and adults received immunizations through our regularly scheduled clinics in Wakefield and Wolfeboro. To date, 3 children are enrolled in our Well Child Clinic Program. Adult Health Screening Clinics are open to all residents of our service area.

As in the past, the success of our program is dependent upon many people who volunteer their time and give their support to our Fund Drive and our appropriation request. The Board of Directors, the Agency Staff, and I thank you all.

Respectfully submitted, DAVENA DeWOLFE, R.N. Nurse Administrator

REPORT OF THE POLICE DEPARTMENT - 1980

Police Chief	Charles Ruff, Jr. (part of year)
	Larry Kilmer (part of year)
Police	James Murphy, Montgomery Warman
	Henry M. Blanton (Special)
Regular Warnings	31
Regular Summons	15
Radar Warnings	0
Radar Summons	17
Criminal Mischief	1
Bench Warrants	$\bar{1}$
Supeonas	0
Appearances in Court	1 0
Thefts	0
Burglary	10
Complaints	1
Accidents	4
DWI Arrests	0
Assist Ambulance	0
Assist Other Departments	1
License Checks	2
Motor Vehicle Listings	1
Motor Vehicle Record Check	1
Family Disturbance	1
Check Homes—Summer & Winter	1 2 1 1 1 2 1
Deaths	1

REPORT OF THE PLANNING BOARD - 1980

In December, the Board adopted a Master Plan for the Town, as required by law. With the help of an Advisory Committee of many townspeople, the work began in January with the mailing of a questionnaire to all land owners, seeking their opinions on many matters relating to the Town and what they desired for its future.

Because of the large response to the questionnaire, the high degree of unanimity of answers, and the assistance of the Advisory Committee, the report was timely and its cost was under \$1,100, an unusually low

amount for such a document.

A Master Plan is a guide for future actions, and it does not change any local regulations by itself. Copies are available from the Planning Board and the Selectmen.

In 1980, the Board approved subdivisions of land that created eight

new lots, none requiring new roads.

Respectfully submitted,
GEORGE C. SCRIBNER, Chairman
NORMAN C. WALPOLE, Vice Chairman
CHARLES F. BUCKLAND
ROBERT H. CHARNOCK, Selectman
SHIRLEY E. GANEM
SUSAN R. MURPHY
ROLAND C. TINKHAM

REPORT OF THE LAKES REGION PLANNING COMMISSION - 1980

In recent months we have assisted Brookfield in the following ways:

—Provided assistance in the tabulation and analysis of the Community
Survey.

-Updated Town Base Map.

-Met with the Planning Board and local volunteers to to outline the

procedure for conducting an Existing Land Use Survey.

-Prepared maps for the Town Master Plan, including Existing Land Use, Prime Agricultural Lands, Topographic Features, and Physical Features.

-Provided demographic data for Population Chapter of Town Master

Plan

 Provided a sample performance zoning ordinance for the Planning Board's consideration as it prepares the implementation section of its Master Plan.

This list will grow before the fiscal year ends in June. In addition, you are encouraged to come to the office in Meredith to take advantage of our resources.

Cordially, ROGER P. AKELEY, JR. Executive Director

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT - 1980

The first meeting of the Board of Adjustment was held in April. Mr. Alan McKinlay was appointed by the Selectmen to fill the vacancy caused by

the expired term of Mr. Ralph Shortridge.

The Board met several times during the year as circumstances warranted. In May, a request for a variance was received from John E. Page for property at the corner of Garney Road and Pike Brook Road. The request was for a variance of the terms of Article V, Section C, of the Zoning Ordinance to permit excavation, filling, and the location of a dwelling within 100 feet of a seasonal run-off.

Mr. John Knight, the surveyor representing Mr. Page, met with the Board of Adjustment, showing a map of the dwelling site and the septic system. The Board met again with Mr. Knight and visited the site, the location for the proposed dwelling, and the septic system, and measured all distances between the dwelling site, septic systems, and water run-off.

On Other occasions the members of the Board viewed the property following heavy rains and witnessed no surface water accumulation. On another occasion, Mr. Bradford Foster of the State Water Supply and Pollution Control Commission visited the property with the Board of Adjustment, on August 11, 1980. In his written report Mr. Foster concluded that "the area is suitable for sewage disposal".

On Deptember 13, 1980, at a \$100.00 a day fee, the Selectmen had Mr. Barry H. Keith, Natural Resource Consultant, view the proposed building lot. At the invitation of the Selectmen, the Board of Adjustment members were present. Copies of Mr. Keith's report, dated September 19, 1980, are on file with the Selectmen and the Board of Adjustment.

Based upon the reports of Mr. Bradford Foster, Sanitarian for the Water Supply and Pollution Control Commission, and Mr. Barry H. Keith, Natural Resource Consultant, and the diligent and conscientious study of the Board of Adjustment, a variance was finally granted to Mr. John E. Page on October 15, 1980.

Respectfully submitted, H. RUSSELL ALBRO CURRIE DeBOW DONNALEE WILSON KENNETH HEALD ALAN McKINLAY

REPORT OF FOREST FIRE WARDEN AND STATE FOREST FIRE SERVICE

Forest Fire Prevention: Your Business, Our Business, Good Business. Forest fire prevention slogans have been seen in association with Smokev Bear since the late nineteen forties when a national effort to check the

spread of forest fires was implemented.

New Hampshire residents recognized that forest fire prevention and suppression was the responsibility of every citizen, a half century before this national campaign, when our legislature established our first forest fire laws in 1903. Since that date, the State has appointed a town/city forest fire warden who is responsible for forest fire law enforcement in his municipality.

All fires kindled out of doors when there is no snow on the ground must be approved in writing by the forest fire warden before being kindled. All forest fires must be suppressed by the warden and his deputies as soon as they are reported. The cost of fire suppression is shared jointly by the town/city and the State of New Hampshire, as are forest fire prevention

and forest fire training costs.

This state and local municipality cooperative forest fire program has given New Hampshire one of the best forest fire records in the United States.

FOREST FIRE STATISTICS - 1980 No of Fires

No. of Acres

603

District Town	67 3	$\begin{array}{c} 601/2 \\ 2^{1/4} \end{array}$
E. SVEN CARLSON District Fire Chief		FRED E. NASON Forest Fire Warden

1 226

REPORT OF THE TRUST FUNDS OF THE TOWN OF BROOKFIELD, N.H. - December 31, 1980

		6 8	% and Balance		Balance				
Date and Name of Fund	Purpose	Be How Invested	Beginning	Balance End Year	Beginning	Income %	Income Ex	Expended During Year	Balance End Year
7/1/56 Allen Samuel	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #15.21	300.00	300.00	227.32	71/4 to 121/2			220.92
		Common Fund #25.21			28.25	5 & 12	47.25T-16.31 C-30.00	C-30.00	29.19
5/27/65 Churchill, Joseph	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #14.77	300.00	300.00	155.90	71/4 to 12	21 49		177.39
		Common Fund #2			71 23	5 & 12	43.23T-41.15	C-15.00	58.31
8/7/27 Dealand, Thomas F.	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #11.04	20.00	50.00	25.97	71/4 to 12	28.41		54.38
		Common Fund #2			54.80	5 & 12	9.49T-31.67	C-10.00	22.62
5/12/50 Garland, Mary	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #13.35	200.00	200.00	150 22	71/4 to 12	-15.48		134 74
		Common Fund #2			73	5 & 12	30.54T38	C-30.00	19
11/1/72 Hanson Trust	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #14.5	300.00	300.00	163.87	71/4 to 12	-13.88		149.99
		Common Fund #2			10.56	5 & 12	40.78T-6.10	C-10.00	35.24
2/26/26 Lang, R.A	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #13.06	200.00	200.00	107.05	71/4 to 12	-111		105 94
		Common Fund #2			20.99	5 & 12	27.68T-12 13	C-20.00	16.54
10/11/48 Palmer, Jasper T.	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #111.72	873.08	873.08	346.20	71/4 to 12	-47.57		298 63
		Common Fund #2			8.66	5 & 12	106.52T-4 99	C-60.00	50.19
8/29/44 Podrasnik, Joseph N.	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #116.23	500.00	500.00	1,195.81	71/4 to 12	- 73.09		1,122.72
		Common Fund #2				5 & 12	147.59		147 59
6/30/44 Robinson, Noah	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #11.35	100.00	100.00	41.19	71/4 to 12	-5.88		35.31
		Common Fund #2			.40	5 and 12	12.30 T.22	2	12 48
6/16/70 Wentworth, Walter E.	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #13.3	200.00	200.00	144.87	71/4 to 12	- 14.57		130.30
		Common Fund #2			2	5 & 12	29.86	10.30	20.10
6/1/74 Franges, Justine C.	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #143.21	3,000.00	3,000.00	1,496.79	71/4 to 12	-176 25		132 54
		Common Fund #2				5 & 12	393 20		393.20
6/7/77 Willey Fund	Cemetery Care	Common Fund #12.26	200.00	200.00	36.24	71/4 to 12	-10.18		26 06
•		Common Fund #2				5 & 12	20.60		20.60
Totals Common Funds 1 & 2		100	6,223.08	6,223.08	4,286.13		594.53	297.49	4,583.17
CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS									
12/31/78 Road Equipment		Roch.Sav Bk.	1,777.93	5,777 93	139.44	51/2	119 44		259 38
10/11/79 Road Equipment		Roch.Sav.Bk.	5,111.82	5,111.82	63.18	1/2	518.75 & 19 60		601.53
3/1/79 Police Cruiser		Roch.Sav.Bk	200.00	1,000.00	39 47	51/2	31.87		71 34

362 40

31.87 19.77 709.43 1,303.96

51/2 51/2

342.63 **585.22**

7,389.75 11,889.75 13,612.83 18,112.83

Roch. Sav. Bk Roch. Sav. Bk

4/26/77 Equipment Maintenance Fund Total Capital Reserve Funds

Totals - All Trust Funda

4,871.35

1,294.65 5,877.82

297.49

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT

We have examined the books and accounts of all Town Officers for the

year ended December 31, 1980.

All reports have been completed and forwarded to the Municipal Accounting Division of the New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration as per our instructions.

In addition to the Annual Reports filed as required by law, the auditors

performed interim tests of all cash transactions as of June 30, 1980.

The fundamental purpose of the audit is:

To determine that all Revenues to which the Town is entitled have been collected and remitted to the Treasurer or properly verified as outstanding accounts; and, to determine whether all expenditures have been properly authorized, conform to law and are supported by appropriate invoices and payrolls.

We confirm, in our opinion, that all accounts are in order.

Respectfully submitted, KENNETH F. HEALD HEAN ALBRO Auditors

VITAL STATISTICS - 1980

		BIRTHS	
Date of Birth	Name of Child	Name of Father	Maiden Name of Mother
January 1, 1980	Shawn Christopher Blair	Christopher Seeking Blair	Susan Ann Nordberg
June 5, 1980	Andrea Clare Tully	Hugh Michael Tuly	Leslie Carol Holmes
June 6, 1980	Sarah Jean Wilkins	Kevin Lee Wilkins	Rosalie Ann Sirois
July 1, 1980	Sarah Louise Beckwith	William Henry Beckwith	Dawn Marie Hanson
September 17, 1980	Natasha Lynn Meroski	Robert Stanley Meroski	Charlene Ann Cotton
November 12, 1980	Brett David Hodgdon	David Glenn Hodgdon	Janice Ann Copplestone

S	
I	
AT.	
E	

Date of Death	Name of Deceased	Birthplace	Age
March 5, 1980	Jacqueline H. Barnard	Missouri	40
May 19, 1980	Reed T. Roberts	Illinois	78
September 21, 1980	Anna Johanna Eleanora Joachim Germany	Germany	74
September 26, 1980	Robert McDonald	Massachusetts	75
October 13, 1980	Helen Ruff	Connecticut	53
October 22, 1980	Roland S. Hughes	Massachusetts	75
November 9, 1980	Cora A. Nelson	٠.	9/
November 23, 1980	Ella Shortridge	New Hampshire	73

MARRIAGES

)	
Date of Marriage	Where Married	Name of Persons	Person Performing Rites
August 9, 1980	Union	Philip Virgil Lewis, Jr. Penny Candy Tirrell	Marshall Mack Stevenson Clergyman
September 7, 1980	Wakefield	Kenneth W. Davis Carolyn E. Cossette	Harry Widman Ordained Minister
October 4, 1980	Wolfeboro	James E. Whittemore Laurie M. Gallagher	Lawrence Heath Minister
November 8, 1980	Brookfield	Royce A. Saujon, II Frances H. Weinroth	Jo Ann Bickford

I certify that the births, deaths, and marriages are correct to the best of my knowledge.

NANCY WHITTEMORE, Town Clerk

39



